

DocuWare for Smart Document Control

User Manual

Answers and how-to guides for user of the preconfigured solution DocuWare for Smart Document Control.

> DocuWare Version 7.9 / DW7.9T0 DocuWare Version 7.8 / DW7.8T0 DocuWare Version 7.7 / DW7.7T0 DocuWare Version 7.6 / DW7.6T1

Copyright DocuWare



Copyright © 2023 DocuWare GmbH

All rights reserved

The software contains proprietary DocuWare information. It is provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and is also protected by copyright law. Reverse engineering of the software is prohibited.

Due to continued product development this information may change without notice. The information and intellectual property contained herein is confidential between DocuWare GmbH and the client and remains the exclusive property of DocuWare. If you find any problems in the documentation, please report them to us in writing. DocuWare does not warranty that this document is error-free.

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise without the prior written permission of DocuWare.

This document was created using <u>AuthorIT™</u>.

Disclaimer

The content of this guide is furnished for informational use only, is subject to change without notice, and should not be construed as a commitment by DocuWare GmbH. DocuWare GmbH assumes no responsibility or liability for any errors or inaccuracies that may appear in the informational content contained in this guide.

Gender Neutral Communications

DocuWare communications are gender-neutral. All past and future communications issued by the company are inclusive of all genders, even if not explicitly stated in the wording.

DocuWare GmbH Planegger Straße 1 82110 Germering Germany www.docuware.com



Contents

1.	User	management	4
	1.1	User roles in the solution	4
	1.2	Create new users	4
2.	Secu	Ire Archiving	8
	2.1	Document trays and file cabinets in the solution	8
	2.2	Capture and store documents	9
	2.3	Document types and retention periods	10
	2.4	Manage document type select lists	12
	2.5	Modify retention period	14
	2.6	Deleting documents	15
3.	Acce	ess Documents	17
	3.1	Access related documents	17
	3.2	Overview with lists	17
4.	Pern	nissions and collaboration.	20
	4.1	Permissions and providing access	20
	4.2	View and manage permissions	20
	4.3	Manage action dates	22
	4.4	Assign documents	23
	4.5	Send requests	26

1 User management

1.1 User roles in the solution

Roles are assigned when a <u>user is created</u> (page 4) in the User Management within the Roles tab. In the solution DocuWare for Smart Document Control, user roles do not define who is allowed to read, edit, or own a document. These permissions are assigned to the document directly when a document is <u>stored</u> (page 9).

Depending on the role assignment, users can see and access different elements of the solution in the DocuWare Client.

The following user roles are available in the solution:

DW - Administrator

This user role manages the solution, has full access to the configurations, and all file cabinets. The *DW* - *Administrator* can, for example, <u>create new users</u> (page 4) or <u>adapt</u> the solution's select lists (page 12).

DW - All Users

All users must be assigned to this role in <u>user creation</u> (page 4) for storing, searching, and editing documents.

DW - Contract Management

This role provides access to additional components for managing contracts, for example, a contract document tray, dialogs for store and search, list and folders.

DW - Signature

This role provides access to the components for the solution DocuWare for Electronic Signature, when added to the system.

Default Organization role

This role is automatically assigned to all users when they are created in the DocuWare system.

Organization Administrator

This role is automatically assigned to the registration user who created the organization. Users of this role can perform all administration tasks within the DocuWare system.

1.2 Create new users

The DW - Administrator of the solution can add new users in a few steps.

Here's how:

- In your DocuWare Client open *Configurations* via the main menu (click on your username) and go to *User Management* in the *General* section.
- Click on the *New user* button at the top left to create a new user.



- In the *New unnamed user* box enter the username (this will be used as the DocuWare log-in). The username must be unique, for example use a period to separate first name and last name (firstname.lastname); hyphenate double names (firstname-firstname.lastname).
- Enter all appropriate user information. The email address is required, because users are notified via email of tasks or sent a link to reset their password.

😩 User Management						
< Back		Save				
Peggy.Jenkins General Groups Role	es Function profiles File cabinet profiles Dialogs Stamps					
Name and registrati	on					
Title	Please choose 🗸	0				
First name	Peggy					
Last name	Jenkins					
Email	peggy.jenkins@petersengineering.com					
Registration	 Request user by email to activate account and set password 	0				
	Set password now					
	User's password never expires	6				
Document Tray						
	Create personal document tray	6				
Name	Inbox - Peggy Jenkins					
Color						
Assigned file cabinet	DW - Documents ~					
Out-of-office						

- By default, a personal document tray *Inbox* is automatically created for each user (in addition, each user automatically receives the document trays included in the solution or can create additional document trays themselves if required).
 - For clear differentiation of the trays, we recommend including the name of the user after the suggested tray name.
 - Select a color indicator for the tray. Assign the file cabinet *DW Documents* to the tray.



• Switch from the *General* tab to the *Roles* tab and **assign the new user to at least** to the <u>role (page 4)DW - All Users</u>.

Assign roles	to the user	•				
				۹ Filter	r	0
Use	Nam	ie			Assigned by	
	Selec	t all				
	Defau	ult Organization role				
	DW -	Administrator				
	DW -	All Users				
DW - Contract Management						
	DW -	Signature				
	Orga	nization Administrator				



• Optionally switch to the *Dialogs* tab and then to *Lists* for activating additional <u>lists</u> (page 17) for the user.

		Dialogs	Star	nps		
Assign	dialogs to the user					
All	Search Store Result List	Folders			۹ Filter	6
Use	Name	File cabinet		Туре	Assigned by	
	Select all					
	My documents	DW - Documents		List		
	Shared with me	DW - Documents		List		
	Shared with me - Read	DW - Documents		List		
	Shared with me - Edit	DW - Documents		List		
	Due in the next 30 days	DW - Documents		List	6	
	Shared by me	DW - Documents		List		
	Waiting for signature	DW - Documents		List		
	Signed documents (last 30 days)	DW - Documents		List		
	Not signed documents (last 30 days)	DW - Documents		List		
	Recycle Bin	DW - Documents		List	0	
	Due today & overdue	DW - Documents		List	0	
	Status of assignments	DW - Documents		List	0	
	Due in the next 31 to 60 days	DW - Documents		List		

• Click on *Save* (upper right) to complete the new user creation. The employee receives a registration email for the new user account and DocuWare login information based on your selections within the user creation.

2 Secure Archiving

2.1 Document trays and file cabinets in the solution

Documents are stored from document trays to file cabinets.

Document trays serve as temporary storage to capture documents before storing them in the file cabinet. Document trays can be shared, but they can also be personal.

File cabinets store documents based on the retention periods and in an orderly manner. Also, data and meta data, such as document types and retention periods are maintained in the file cabinet.

Document trays included in Smart Document Control:

DW - Administrator Inbox

Shared document tray for users assigned to the role DW - Administrator.

DW - Contracts

Shared document tray for capturing and sorting of contracts and documents. Only for users assigned to the role *DW* - *Contract Management*.

DW - First Steps and more

Shared document tray for capturing and sorting of any documents. We have already provided a few documents into this tray: a short First Steps guide to the solution, document flowchart, and a sample proposal.

Personal tray for each user

A personal inbox can be created for each user in the <u>user creation</u> (page 4).

Furthermore, it is possible to create additional shared or personal document trays. Detailed information about the document tray and its functions can be found in the DocuWare Basics how-tos.

File cabinets included in Smart Document Control:

DW - Documents

This file cabinet is the central repository for all documents in your company, for example, contracts, proposals, agreements, letters, and emails. All users are assigned to the role *DW* - *All Users* providing them access to this file cabinet for storing and retrieving documents. Stored documents can only be viewed and or edited based on the permissions assigned individually per document.

DW - System Data

This file cabinet is a data file cabinet. It contains fixed selection lists for your documents and the version of the solution.

Back to overview: Smart Document Control



2.2 Capture and store documents

• Capture documents by drag and drop, the *Import* button or *Scan* into one of your <u>document trays</u> (page 8). Also, emails or email attachments can be simply dragged and dropped into any tray.



- Select a document in the tray and click on the *Store* button. For users assigned the role *DW All Users*, this opens the store dialog for indexing documents and storing them in the *DW Documents* file cabinet. For users that have been assigned additional roles, a drop-down list with several store dialogs will open. For example, select *DW Documents All Documents* or *DW Documents Contracts* specifically for storing contracts.
- Index the document to quickly find it later in the file cabinet:
 - **Document type** is a mandatory index field. This ensures consistent indexing, using a predefined select list. Click on the down arrow to the right of the index field and select the appropriate entry. For many document types there are additional subtypes to choose from. If a suitable document type or subtype is not on the list, additional types <u>can be easily added to the select list</u> (page 12).
 - Add additional index information. Simply type in the field directly or transfer data from the document using One Click Indexing.

📀 DocuWare

- Specify an Action Date in the index field if desired: This provides a notification in the list *DW Documents Due in the next 30 Days* as an alert that your attention is needed on the document. <u>Read more</u> (page 22)
- Specify an email message and the user permissions if desired: Provide other users read or edit <u>permissions</u> (page 20) to the document and optionally inform them with an email notification. Select individual users or share the document with everyone selecting the role *DW All Users*. If you leave these fields empty, the document will be stored only for you. You can provide other users access after storing using a stamp.

Document tray	rs 🗸 Q Search 👃 🧮 Lists 🔍 🗸 Tasks 🖉 🖿 Folders 🔍		
Store to "DW - Do	cuments"		
K Cancel 🛞 F	Reset	Store :	
Document Type *	Proposal	~]
LSubtype	Customer	~	
Company Name	Flying Tom	~	
Contact Name	Thomas Rain	~	
Contact Email	thomas.rain@flyingtom.com	~	
Subject	Thunderbird	~	
Project	DE2005011	~	
Document Date	05/01/2022 🗸 🔛		
Action Date	08/24/2022 🗸 🔛		
Email Message	Type comments here to send a notification email to the users specified below.]
Read permission	DW - All Users	+ ~	
Edit permission	fred.winner	+ ~	
	perelisariuers		-

• After all the appropriate index fields are complete, click the *Store* button. The document is now securely stored in your *DW* - *Documents* file cabinet.

2.3 Document types and retention periods

Each document is indexed, at a minimum with a document type (agreement, contract, etc.) and optionally with a corresponding subtype (consulting, employment, etc.) when <u>stored</u> (page 9) in in the file cabinet *DW* - *Documents*.

To ensure consistency, document types and subtypes are entered during storing using a predefined select list. The <u>select list can be modified and expanded</u> (page 12) as required.



For each predefined document type and subtype a default retention period of 7 years is set. Thirty days before the end of their retention period, the document is displayed in the *DW* - *Documents* - *Recycle Bin* list of its owner(s) and deleted on the retention date. The <u>retention period can be changed</u> (page 14) as required for longer or shorter periods. In addition, you can use a stamp at any time to <u>delete documents</u> (page 15).

Document Type	Subtype	Retention in years
Agreement	Consulting	7
	Maintenance	7
	Non-Disclosure	7
	Other	7
	Subcontractor	7
Contract	Employment	7
	Financial	7
	Insurance	7
	Licensing	7
	Other	7
	Partnership	7
	Telephone	7
Invoice	Customer	7
	Vendor	7
Lease	Building and Property	7
	Machinery and Equipment	7
	Other	7
	Vehicle	7

Overview of predefined document types and retention in years:



Letter	Received	7
	Sent	7
Packing Slip	Customer	7
	Vendor	7
Proposal	Customer	7
	Vendor	7
Purchase Order	Customer	7
	Vendor	7
Statement	Bank Account	7
	Credit Card	7
Travel Expense	Expense Report	7
	Receipt	7

2.4 Manage document type select lists

A predefined select list is available for indexing document types and subtypes. The *DW* - *Administrator* can easily modify the list or add new records.



Here's how:

Add new document types

- In your DocuWare Client, go to a document tray, click on an empty area in the tray and select the *Create data* record button.
- Click on DW System Data Document Type.



- Enter your new document type in the *Document Type* field.
- Enter your new subtype in the *Subtype* field.
- Enter retention in years; Note: If the retention period is left blank, the document will have a default retention of 7 years.

Document trays	Q Search	Lists 3	🖌 Tasks 🗸	Folders 🗸],		
Creating a data record in file cabinet "DW - System Data"								
✓ Cancel ⊗R	eset			Creat	e data record			
Document Type	Pricelist				x ~			
Subtype	Vendor				~			
Retention in years	7				~			

• Click *Create data record* to save the new record. This new document type / subtype will now appear in the select list.

Add new subtypes

- Open the store dialog *DW System Data Document Type* via *Create data record* as described above.
- Select a document type from the dropdown list.
- Enter your new subtype in the *Subtype* field.
- Enter retention in years; Note: If the retention period is left blank, the document will have a default retention of 7 years.
- Click *Create data record* button to save the new record. This new subtype will now appear in the select list.



Rename existing document types / subtypes

- In your DocuWare Client, click on *Search* in the menu bar.
- Select the DW System Data Document Type search dialog.

Document trays	🝳 Search 🚬 🏭 Lists ³ 🗸 Tasks 🖉 🖿 Folders 🖉			
	DW - Documents - All Documents			
	DW - Documents - All Fields			
	DW - System Data - All Records			
	DW - Documents - Contracts			
DW - System Data - Document Type				
'	DW - Documents - Manage Access			

- Enter the document type and/or subtype you want to change and click the yellow *Search* button.
- Select the Document type and/or Subtype to change and double click on the selected line.
- Enter your change in the appropriate field. Note: If the retention period is left blank, the document will have a default retention of 7 years.
- Click the Save button to update the list.

2.5 Modify retention period

The default retention period of 7 years is set for each document type and subtype. The *DW - Administrator* can simply modify the retention period based on your business rules in a few steps.

For a document type / subtype:

- In your DocuWare Client, click on *Search* in the menu bar and select *DW System Data Document Type*.
- Enter the document type and/or subtype you want to change and click the yellow *Search* button.
- Select the document type and/or subtype to change and double click on the selected line.



• Enter the number of years in the *Retention in year* field. **Note:** If the retention period is left blank, the document will have a default retention of 7 years.

Doc	cument trays Q Se	arch 🧹 🏭 l	lists 🍯 🖌 Tasks	V Folders		
DW -	System Data - Docum	ent Type				×
< Char	nge search 🗄 🚺					
Туре	Document Type	Subtype		Retention in years		
9	Agreement	Non Disclo			×	
9	Agreement	Consulting				
9	Agreement	Subcontrac			System entries >	
	Agreement	Maintenan	Document Type Agreen	Agreement	~	
2	Agreement	Other	Sub Type	Consulting	~	
			Retention in years	7	~	
			Select Lists	Document Type		
					Save	

• Click the Save button to update the list.

For a document in the recycle bin

A document appears in the *DW* - *Documents* - *Recycle Bin* list 30 days before the retention period expires. As owner you can individually extend the retention period for this document, if you need to store it for a longer period of time.

- Select the document in the recycle bin
- Right click to open the context menu and click Edit index entries
- Select a new *Retention Date* from the calendar.
- Click the Save button. The document disappears from the recycle bin list and will appear here again 30 days before the new set retention date.

2.6 Deleting documents

If a document needs to be deleted from the file cabinet before the end of its <u>retention</u> <u>period</u> (page 10), you can simply use a stamp to start a secure deletion workflow. You will need to be the owner or have *Edit* <u>permissions</u> (page 20) on the document to do this.



Here's how:

- Double click on the document to open it in the viewer.
- Click on the stamp icon and select the DW To Recycle Bin (max. 30 days) stamp.



- Place the stamp on the document and enter your password.
- The document is displayed in the *DW Documents Recycle Bin list* of its owner (visible by opening the list).

🕰 Doo	cument trays	Q Search	📔 Lists 👤 🗸 Tasks 🖉 🖿 Folders	~	ŋ
Recycle Bin			DW - Documents - Due in the next 30 days	1	×
I= ti			DW - Documents - Due today & overdue		;
	1+		DW - Documents - Recycle Bin 1		
Туре	Retention Dat	e Docume	DW - Documents - Status of assignments	mpany	
POF	05/18/2022	Proposal	Vendor Al	BC Experts, Inc.	

- All other users lose their access rights to this document. This means it disappears from all other lists, folders, and searches.
- The owner has 30 days to cancel the deletion (see below).
- Without further action, the document is automatically and irrevocably deleted from the file cabinet 30 days later.

Cancel deletion schedule

- Open the document in the list *DW Documents Recycle Bin* by double-clicking in the viewer and select the stamp *DW Restore from Recycle Bin*.
- Place the stamp on the document and enter your password.
- The document automatically disappears from the owner's deletion schedule list and is displayed again in the relevant lists, folders, and searches by all users with permissions to the document.

Note: Documents also appear in the *Recycle Bin* list 30 days before the retention period expiration date. If you want to keep a document longer, you need to extend its retention period. <u>Read more</u> (page 14)

3 Access Documents

3.1 Access related documents

Use the *Related Documents* function to quickly and easily access all documents that are connected to the document currently being viewed. For example, find all documents with the same *Company Name*, *Contact Name* or *Project*.

Here's how:

• Select a document and click on the icon for *Related documents* in the toolbar of the result list (if *Related documents* is not visible, click on the down arrow next to the three dots and select the function from the drop down select list)

Doc	ument trays	🎗 Search 🔪 🔚 Lis	ists 🗸 Tasks 🖉 🖿 Folders 🖕	D,
DW - Do	cuments - All Doc	cuments		×
< Char	nge search	1 🖉 Edit 🖻 Share	e by email @ Clip • Related documents ^ 🚯 Edit index entries	~ :
Туре	Document Typ	Subtype	Company Name DW - Company Name DW - Contact Name	
POF	Proposal	Customer	Flying Tom 🔮 DW - Manage Access	lyingtom
POF	Proposal	Vendor	ABC Experts, enc. Project miller@abcexp	erts.com

• Click on the desired document relationship and the linked documents are immediately listed in a new results list, including the document from which the relationship was opened:

🗛 Do	ocument trays Q Se	arch 🔪 🚺 Lists	🗸 Tasks 🖉 🖿	Folders	D,
DW -	Documents - All Document	ts DW - Com	pany Name 🛛 🗙		
Ξ	🚹 🖉 Edit 🛃 Share b	y email 🖉 Clip 📌 F	Related documents 🐱 🕼	Edit index entries 🛭 🖄 S	iend request
Туре	Document Type	Subtype	Company Name	Contact Name	Contact Email
PDF	Purchase Order	Customer	Flying Tom	Thomas Rain	thomas.rain@flyingtom.c
	Proposal	Customer	Flying Tom	Thomas Rain	thomas.rain@flyingtom.c
	Invoice	Customer	Flying Tom	Thomas Rain	thomas.rain@flyingtom.c
	Letter	Received	Flying Tom	Thomas Rain	thomas.rain@flyingtom.c

The owner of a document can also use the *Related documents* function to <u>view and</u> <u>manage access</u> (page 20) for a document. If you have opened a document with *Read* permissions, you can use this function to identify the owner of the document, for example to <u>request</u> (page 26) *Edit* permissions.

3.2 Overview with lists

For quick access to specific documents and activities, the solution provides various lists that update automatically. Which lists you see depends on the user roles or which lists have been assigned to you. An example:



🕰 Do	cument trays	٩	iearch	📔 Lists 🖣 🗸 Tasks 🖉 🖿 Folders 🗸			
Due t	oday & overdue	n	Due in	DW - Documents - Due in the next 30 days	2		
:=	†I.	-		DW - Documents - Due in the next 31 to 60 days	5		:
				DW - Documents - Due in the next 61 to 90 days	5		
Туре	Retention Da	ate	Docume	DW - Documents - Due today & overdue	1	'	Contact
POF	05/19/2022		Proposal	DW - Documents - My documents	26	m	Thomas Rain
				DW - Documents - Recycle Bin	1		
				DW - Documents - Shared by me	86		
				DW - Documents - Shared with me - Edit	67		
				DW - Documents - Shared with me - Read	64		
				DW - Documents - Status of assignments			
				•	_		

Each list is marked with the number of documents currently in it. New documents added to a list are identified with a red number. The number in the *Lists* field in the menu bar corresponds to the number of documents in all lists that you have actively opened:



Following lists are available depending on your user roles:

User role DW - All users

- Due today & overdue
- Due in the next 30 days
- Status of assignments
- Recycle bin

User role DW - Signature

- Waiting for signature
- Signed documents (last 30 days)
- Not signed documents (last 30 days)

In addition, the *DW* - *Administrator* can assign any list to a user in <u>user management</u> (page 4).

Additional lists available to users:

- Due in the next 31 to 60 days
- Due in the next 61 to 90 days
- My documents
- Shared by me
- Shared with me



- Shared with me Read
- Shared with me Edit

Tip: Save time by saving frequent searches as lists to quickly access the documents that you need regularly without having to enter search terms again.



4 Permissions and collaboration

4.1 Permissions and providing access

When you store a document in the *DW* - *Documents* file cabinet, you are the **owner** of the document and can assign permissions on the document for other users to access:

Read

Search and view documents

Edit

Modify, download, send, create new version, set stamps. Includes the *Read* permissions.

There are two ways to assign permissions to other users:

When storing the document

The user can decide when storing a document in the DW - Documents file cabinet, who will be given read or edit permissions.

After the document is stored using stamps

The owner of a document can assign permissions after storing a document using the *DW* - *Provide Access* stamp. You can add other users with *Read* or *Edit* permissions, you can also add additional owners to the document. Using the *DW* - *Assign to* stamp you can <u>assign a</u> <u>task with a due date providing users temporary access</u> (page 23) until the task is completed.

You can read <u>here</u> (page 20) how to view permissions and manage access.

Back to overview: Smart Document Control

4.2 View and manage permissions

The owner of a document can view or change the permissions for *Read*, *Edit*, or *Owner* by using the *Related documents* function. There are two ways:

By search dialog

- Click on Search and select DW Documents Manage Access.
- Enty any index criteria and click the yellow search button for the desired document(s).



• Select a document in the result list and click on *Edit index entries* in the toolbar of the result list.

Doc	cumen	it trays Q Search	🔪 🏭 Lists 🔍 🗸	Tasks 🖉 🖿 Folders 🗸		I	ŋ
DW -	Docun	nents - All Documents	DW - Manage Access	; ×			
I	†↓	🐻 Edit index entries					:
Туре	D	ocument Type	Subtype	Company	Contact Name	Contact Email	
(2018	Ą	greement	Subcontractor	Joe's Contracting Co.	Joseph Smith	joesmith@jcc.com	

• Now you can view all permissions:

Document tray	s Q Search y	📕 Lists 🔍 🗸 Tasks	Folders	D,
DW - Documents	- All Documents	DW - Manage Access X		
Editing index entri	ies of "Subcontractor	Agreement"		
< Cancel				Save
				System entries >
Read	Add new keyword			+ ~
	Everyone			
Edit	Peter Sanders			+ 🖌
	Peggy Jenkins			
				Remove this keyword from the list.
Owner	Elisabeth King			+ 🗸

- **Editing permission:** To add additional user permissions to *Read, Edit,* or *Owner,* select the username from the drop-down menu and click on the *Plus* sign. To remove permissions from a user, click on their name, then click the *Minus* sign.
- **Requesting additional permission:** If you are assigned *Read permission*, and now need *Edit* permission, under the link *DW Identify Owner*, you can request it from the owner for example via <u>Send request</u> (page 26).

By related documents

Another option to view and, if necessary, edit permissions on a document is to use the <u>Related documents</u> (page 17) function. The owner of a document can use the link *DW* - *Manage* Access from the dropdown list. For users with read permission the *DW* - *Identify Owner* is displayed in the list.

- Select a document in the result list.
- Click on the *Related documents* in the tool bar.



• Depending on your view, select DW - Manage Access or DW - Identify Owner.



- Click on Edit index entries in the newly opened result list.
- Now you can identify the document's owner or view and edit all permissions as described above.

4.3 Manage action dates

When <u>storing documents</u> (page 9), you can enter an *Action Date* in the *DW* - *Documents* store dialog. If a document was stored without an action date, you can also set a date later using the *DW* - *Set New Action Date* stamp.

Thirty days before the specified action date, the document appears in the *DW* -*Documents* - *Due in the next 30 days* list for any user who has been granted <u>permissions</u> (page 20) to the document. Also, a list is available for documents *Due today & overdue*. If needed, additional lists for documents *Due in the next 31 to 60* days, *Due in the next 61 to 90* days are available. The *DW* - *Administrator* can <u>add these</u> (page 17) for any user.

📀 DocuWare	Peggy.Jenk Peters Enginee	cins ~	\checkmark < $>$ 1/1 > « < 1 1/1 > » 1 × ×
Document trays Q Search	🗄 Lists \downarrow 🗸 Tasks 🖉 🖿 Folders 🖉	D,	1 DW - Assign to
Due in the next 30 days	DW - Documents - Due in the next 30 days 1	×	DW - Provide Access
\Xi 🏦 🖉 Edit 🖻 Share by email	DW - Documents - Due today & overdue	:	1 DW - Restore from Recycle Bin
	DW - Documents - Recycle Bin		DW - Set New Action Date
Type Action Date Assigned by	DW - Documents - Status of assignments		May 1, 2022 - DV - 10 Recycle bin (max. 30 days) Evino Tom Peter Senders
eos 06/03/2022	Proposal Customer		4 Crotty Lane Sales Manager A Crotty Lane PHOME: (#IS) 563-9045 New Windsor, NY 12558
			Attn: Thomas Rain thomas rain@flyingtom.com
			Proposal: Far the delivery and assembly of the roller coaster: Thunderbird Your inquiry of 3d012023 (Project No. DE2003011 Dear Mr. Rate: Subject of the offer: Prove Transformer offer coaster "Thunderbird" model no. 4711, visited by Subject of the offer: Prove Transformer offer coaster 1502:200. Catator: Flying Transformer Nater coaster 1502:200. Catator: Flying Transformer Nater coaster 1502:200. Project coardination and Inglementator Project coardination Project coardination and Inglementator Project coardination Project coardin
C Automatic refresh active	« < 1 > » 100 ~	1-1 of 1	Sample Document pdf 05/11/2022 1,205 KB



Action Complete

When a required action is completed or resolved on any of the stored documents in your *Due in* lists, they can be managed with the *DW* - *Required Action Complete* stamp (available to those having edit or owner permissions):

- Open the stored document in the list by double-clicking it to see it in the viewer.
- Click on the stamp icon and select DW Required Action Complete.
- Enter your comments in the field on the stamp, click *Set* and place the stamp on the document. The document will be removed from the appropriate *Due in* list for you and anyone granted access to the document.

Set New Action Date

When additional time is needed to complete the required action on any of the stored documents in your *Due in* list, they can be managed with the *DW* - *Set New Action Date* stamp (available to those having edit or owner permissions). However, you can also use this stamp on any stored document if you needed to be reminded of it on a certain due date.

- Open the stored document in the list by double-clicking it to see it in the Viewer.
- Click on the stamp icon and select DW Set New Action Date.
- Enter your comment and the action date on the stamp, click *Set* and place the stamp on the document. The document will remain or appear in the appropriate *Due in* list for you and anyone granted access to the document.

Back to overview: Smart Document Control

4.4 Assign documents

Assign tasks around documents to any user(s) and set a due date when the task needs to be completed by. The access rights to the document provided within this process are only temporary until the assignment has been completed by the user(s).

Here's how:

To initiate an assignment, you need to have *Edit* permissions or be an owner of the document.



- Open stored document by double-clicking it to see it in the viewer.
- Click on the stamp icon and select the DW Assign to stamp.



- Enter the required data in the form fields of the stamp:
 - Select the *Due Date*.
 - Enter the task in the *Comment* field.
 - Select the user(s) to assign the task to and their permission levels. If the selected user(s) are granted additional permissions than the permission granted in storing or sharing process, these permissions rights are only temporary and will be removed once the assignment is completed. Users will be informed by email regarding their task assignment.
 - Decide whether the task should be completed by all selected users or anyone of the selected user would be acceptable to complete the task.



• Click on Set and place the stamp on the document.

~ <		1 $/1 > \gg$ Proposal	1 ,	$\Theta \oplus$	×
Pr AE	DW - Assign to	- Form Fields		×	
Coli. USA	Due Date *	06/14/2022			
(/***	Comments	Please check!			
To: Pete	Read Users	Add new keyword	+ ~		
Peg 356 Nev					
Tha					
Qt	Edit Users	fred.winner	+ ~		
15		peter.sanders			
	Complete by *	Anyone	~		
ABC Füst			S	et	
Deutschla	and Em	al: mai@abc.com SW	IFT/BIC D	EHHCXX1055	

- The document will be displayed your list *DW Documents Status of assignments* with a pending status of *Open*.
- The document will be displayed in the *Tasks* area of all users you have selected. Selected users are automatically notified by email and can open the task and document directly via a link.

Complete the assignment



- Open the document or task by following the link in the email or directly from the *Tasks* in the menu bar within your DocuWare Client.
- Enter a comment and complete the task by clicking *Confirm*.

Document trays	Q Search	Lists 👃 🗸 Ta	asks 👤 🖿 Folders	~	D,
DW - Assign To					1
🔁 Reassign 🖓 Hi	story				
Activity	Rec	eived on	Assigner	Pending Date	
Complete Assignme	nt 05/:	20/2022 10:22 AM	fred.winner	05/31/2022	
C		« < 1	$>$ \gg 100 \checkmark		1-1 of 1
		=			Confirm
Complete	Comments *	OK!			

- The document is removed from your tasks.
- The document's pending status is updated to *Completed* in the *DW Documents Status of assignments* list of the user who initiated the assignment once all required users have completed their assignment. The document will remain in the list for the next 30 days for reference.

4.5 Send requests

The *Send request* function allows you to easily assign tasks to users who have <u>permissions</u> (page 20) on a document. You can also use this function to request additional <u>permissions</u> from the owner (page 20) of a document.



Here's how:

• Select a stored document and click on the *Send Request* function in the toolbar of the result list (if the *Send request* is not visible, click on the down arrow next to the three dots). Alternatively, you can find the function via the document's context menu or in the viewer toolbar.

Do 🕰	ocument trays	٩۶	earch 🧹 📕	Lists 2 🗸 Tasks 🗸 🖿	Folders 🗸		ŋ
DW - D	ocuments - All Do	cument	s				×
< Cha	ange search	†↓	🖉 Edit 🖻 Sh	are by email 🥔 Clip 🎤 Related	d documents 🗸 🐻 Ed	lit index entries 🖄 Send request	:
Туре	Document Ty	pe	Subtype	Company Name	Contact Name	Contact Email	-
POF	Proposal		Vendor	Joe's Contracting	Anne Miller	a.miller@jcontracting.com	

- The Send request dialog box opens. Click on the Plus sign and select one or more user(s) or role(s) who should receive your request.
- Choose user(s) or roles(s) whether it should be assigned to the users in sequence or at the same time.
- Select whether the task should be completed by all selected users or anyone of the selected users would be acceptable to complete the request.
- Enter the details of your request: subject, text, specify one or two decision options (prefilled fields can be overwritten), and if you want the decision to be automatically stamped on the document
- Click on *Send request* button.

📀 DocuWare			-	
🕰 Document trays 🛛 🤉 Search 🔪 📰 List	Send reque	st		×
DW - Documents - All Documents	То			
< Change search 🔢 🏌 🌶 Edit 🖾 Send is	Name	Туре	Out of office	0
Type Document Type Subtype	Peggy Jenkins	User		
uru Proposal Vendor	Peter Sanders	User		
	+ -			I
	 Assign re Assign re 	equest to the list above in s equest to the list above all a	equence It the same time	I
	Task is complet	ted, if it has been confirme	d by these users: All \sim	I
	Details			
	Subject:	Vendor proposal		0
	Text:	Dear all, Should we acc for your approval.	ept this proposal? I think it is good! Thank	8
	Decisions:	 Approve 		
		✓ Reject		
			5	iend request
~ ~ ~	/		11.d1	C.A. COLORADO



- The selected user(s) immediately receives the new request in the *Tasks* area of their DocuWare Client, in addition an automatic email notification is sent containing a link to the document..
- Click on the document in the task list, the decision options appear (double-click to open the document in the viewer)
- Make your decision, optionally add a comment, and click the *Confirm* button.

Q Search	Lists 🖕 🗸 Tasks ᆛ	Folders 🗸	므
		•	1
Subject	Started	Assigned by	
Vendor proposal	11/12/2020 3:59	PM Elisabeth Cash	
« < [1 $>$ \gg 100 \checkmark		1-1 of 1
	=		Confirm
Comment	I agree. It's good.		
	Q Search III	Search Image: Lists Subject Started Vendor proposal 11/12/2020 3:59 « < 1 > » 100 ~ Comment I agree. It's good.	Search Ists Subject Started Subject Started Assigned by Vendor proposal 11/12/2020 3:59 PM Elisabeth Cash 《<1 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (2) (3) (4) (4) (4) (4) (5) (4) (5) (4) (5) (5) (6) (6) (6) (7

• As the requestor, you can view the status of the request in the *Tasks* area of your DocuWare Client under *Sent requests*.

Document trays	Q Search Lists	🗸 🗸 Tasks 📜 🖿 Folders 🗸	
Sent requests		My tasks	3
History		Sent requests	
Document	Subject	Monitor tasks Started	
oe's Contracting Proposa	I Vendor proposal	11/12/2020 3:59	
;	*	< 1 > » 100 v	1-1 of 3
		-	Close task
hese decisions have been	n taken by the users you assign	ed the task to.	Close task
hese decisions have beer User	n taken by the users you assign Decision	ed the task to.	Close task
'hese decisions have beer User Peggy Jenkins	n taken by the users you assign Decision Approve	ed the task to.	Close task ment ee. It's good.

• When all decisions have been made, an additional email notification informs the requestor the request is completed. Click on the *Close task* button to remove it from your sent request list in the *Tasks* area.